
m tat tissue thus insulin cannot act normally at 
these sites. The dog becomes hyperglycemic and 
in many cases the body responds by producing 
more insulin. This is reflected by increased insulin 
levels in the blood. The dog is diabetic because 
insulin target tissues are resistant. This condition 
is reversible provided no major damage has 
occurred to prancrearic cells producing insulin. 

A number of dogs studied recovered spon­
taneously from diabetes when the progesterone 
levels dropped at the end of diestl'US or when the 
dogs were spayed. This was accompanied by a 
drop in the growth hormone level. Others re­
covered when tbc injections of MPA ceased. TI1ey 
too showed a decrease in the levels of proges­
terone and growth hormone. "Female dogs pro­
duce equaUy high amounts of progesterone dur­
ing diestrU!, whether pregnant or not; also, 
reproductive cycles in dogs do not cease as the 
animal ages. It could be possible that the Lifelong 
exposure to these high progesterone levels in 
some animals eventually evokes growth hormone 
elevation. l11e mechanism by which this occurs is 
not known. however. Yet. when ovariohysterec­
tomy was performed, the progesterone and 
growth hormone levels dropped to normal.., Dr. 
Eigenmann explained that for elderly diabetic 
female dogs an ovariohysterectomy ts indicated. 
He recommend treating most of these dogs with 

msulin in order to minimize further damage 10 

the pancreas. "In many cases. shortly after sur­
gery. the ammal returns to normal and the dia­
betes is gone." 

11tis type of diabetes is likely to be seen 
more fre<.juently in Europe where female dogs arc 
rarely spayed. Instead they may be given biannu al 
injections of M PA to prevent estrus. l11is may be 
continued throughout the dog's life unles� she is 
bred. 

Another condition associated with 
progestagen/ progesterone-evoked growth hor­
mone overproduction is acromegaly. In this con­
dition the animal shows sudden increase in soft 
tissue growth, panicularly in the head and neck 
area, a distended abdomen and excessive skin 
folds. This is found in dogs treated with MPA to 
prevent estrus or in animals which are allowed to 
cycle normally. Acromegaly can be life threaten­
ing as the extra tissue in the throat interferes with 
normal breathing. 

Also in this disorder the level of growth 
hormone was found to be elevated. The animals 
recovered completely after an ovariohysterectomy 
and/ or progestagen withdrawal. TI1e tissue 
shrank, the excessive skinfolds disappeared and 
the swelling of the abdomen ceased. "Acromegaly 
in the dog caused by progesterone-evoked growtl• 
hormone overproduction may provide a model 
for the study of the regulation of growth factors," 
explained Dr. Eigenmann. "It is an exciting 
possibility." 

urowth hormone-related diabetes has also 
been found in a cat Dr. Eigenmann has a 
donat�d cat which has diabetes and elevated 
growth hormone levels. Tests showed that the 
animal has a pituitary tumor which causes an 
excessive production of growth hormone. 
"Growth hormone overproduction could be the 
cause of diabetes in a larger number of cats," he 
said . .. The question must be studied. though dia­
betes in cats is not as frequent as tt ism the dog." 

While the overproduction of growth hor­
mone cauS<!s problems so does the underproduc­
tion of the substance. Jn dogs a form of dwarfism 
caused by low levels of growth hormone occurs. 
Dwarfism is a djsorder in which the genetically 
determined growth potential is not reached. In 
order to grow the body must produce growth 
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hen it was acquired in 1952, 
New Bolton Center w-.is a farm 
of about 220 acres, located in 
Chester County. about thirty­
two miles southwest of Phila­
delphia. Oo the propeny were 
a manor house. a bam, and the 
usual implement buildings. 

Dean Mark Allam and the faculty recognized 
that a rural campus was absolutely essential to 
the future existence of the Veterinary School . Mr. 
Harold Stassen, then president of the University, 
was of another opinion� he saw little future for 
this piece of land. Fortunately. the newly appoint­
ed dean was able to convince the U niversity trus­

-Wes of Jhe vital need for this property and before 
long the rural campus had begun to take shape. 

Money was scarce, M) the beginning was 
modest, but nonetheless important. Two concrete 
buildings totalling about 5,000 square feet were 
erected initially and these served many purposes: 
an examination room and surgery. a diagnostic 
laboratory, four research laboratories, a phar­
macy, and recovery stall. Clinical services. includ­
ing the Field Service Unit were headquartered 
here, and some research was begun. In 1953, 
Dean Allam announced the formation of a new 
Department of Preventative Medicine and 
Hygiene (under Dr. Raymond Fagan), and the es­
tablishment of a Poultry Diagnostic Laboratory 
under the direction of Dr. I. George Sperling. 
Another early step was the appointment of Dr. 
Charles Hollister as director of clinics at New 
Bolton Center. 

In 1958 a major program was undertaken to 
obtain funds to construct a large animal hospital 
and a dormitory complex. One million dollars 
v.'as raised from private sources for the hospital 
and sufficient funds were contributed by alumni 
to provide a dormitory complex. The hospital 
W'dS dedicated in 1964 and the dormitory in 1%5. 
For the dormitory, an initial appeal was made to 
alumni, under a plan in which they would be­
come shareholders in the complex for a three-year 
period. The response was swift but, after building 
commenced. it became apparent that the structure 
would not meet federal standards for residencv. 
Additional funds were urgently needed. and a

· 

second appeal was made to alumni for more sub­
staotial gifts. The response was heartwarming; a 
total of $380,000 was contributed and the struc­
ture was named AJumni House. The residency 
portion of the structure is known as the Joseph 
Vansant Dormitory in recognition of a major gift 
by the Vansant family in memory of Dr. Joseph 
Vansant. Class of 1902. 

While New Bolton Center W'dS now able to 
provide clinical services for farm animals and 
horses, hospital barns and stables were urgently 
needed. These became a reality through the ef­
forts of Mr. Lawrence B. Sheppard. chairman of 
Hannover Shoe Farm. Mr. Sheppard had already 
been the major contributor to the construction of 
the hospital and now he once again came to the 
School's aid through a unique arrangement. Mr. 
Sheppard agreed to provjde the materials and the 
tradesmen to construct the hospital barns and 
stables provided that the School wouJd supply 
housing for the workers. This was done, and soon 
New Bolton Center was able to provide hospitali­
zation for farm animals and horses. 

Next, New Bolton Center entered a phase in 
which there was construction of facilities for re­
search and special functions. The Comparative 
Leukemia Research Unit, under the direction of 
Dr. Robert M. Marshak. was established in 1963 
through a grant from the National lnt�titutes of 
Health. In 1969 the Georgia and Phillip Hofmann 
Research Center for Animal Reproduction was 
dedicated, followed in 1971 by the Alarik Myrin 
Memorial Research Building, and in 1975 by the 
C. Mabton Kline Orthopedic and Rehabilitation 
Center. [n 1980. a major addition to the hospital 
was dedicated and the facility became known as 
the George D. Widener Hospital for large 
Animals. 

New Bolton Center is now a complete cam· 
pus and makes the School of Veterinary Medicine 
unique among aJl veterinary schools in having 
both an urban and rural campus. 

While the development of New Bolton Cen� 
ter was spectacular, developments on the Phila­
delphia campus during the period 1952 to 1973 
were equally important in the renaissance of the 
Veterinary School. By 1952, the Small Animal 
Hospital was in deplorable condition and was one 
of the prime reasons why the Educational Coun­
cil of the A.V.M.A. cited the Veterinary School as 
having the best faculty but the poorest physical 
plant of any veterinary school. In 1956 the Uni­
versity made $40,000 available to the School to 
refurbish the reception area, business offices and 
examining rooms of the hospital. While this did 
not answer the problem of an outmoded structure 
it helped to improve the public image of the 
Hospital 

In 1959 a faculty study group developed 
plans for a badly needed basic science building. 
'I}le Pennsy�v�nia State General Assembly pro­
VIded 2.2 mtlhon dollars for the construction of 
thjs facility and at the same time $500 000 in fed­
eral funds were made available. This �larked a 
turning point in the history of the School since it  
meant that the Commonwealth was committed to 
supporting and retaining a veterinary school at 
the University of Pennsylvania rather than estab­
lishing a school at Penn State University as had 
been urged in some quarters. The building was 
completed in 1963 and provided the School with 
basic science research laboratories, new class­
rooms and offices, a library and administrative 
offices. Incorporated into the building was a 
uni�ue m':lltidiscipline laboratory. arranged and 
equ1pped m such a manner as to allow for its use 

�y a number �f disciplines for laboratory instruc­
!•on. When thts laboratory was put in use in 1970 
tt allowed the School to increase its enrollment to 
over one hundred students per year. In 1974 the 
basic science facility was dedicated as the Gladys 
HaJJ Rosenthal Building in recognition of the 
generous, concerned support of Mr. Alfred 
Rosenthal. Until his death in 1979, Mr. Rosenthal 
remained a great friend to the Veterinary School 
and his wife. Gladys. continues that support. 
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